AD-A	A056 008	FOU MAR	TH OR	MENT REDER ELA A HUSS	SEARCH STIC C AIN, J 8005	CHSTAN FRANK	EVELOPM TS FOR EL, R D SB	SODIUM SCANLO	MAND CHLORI	WATER- DE TO	-ETC #	MRET	2 (1)	/
	OF AD A058008	0 0				Annalisati (2)	The second secon		副副					
			An estimation of the second se				* Anna ann an Anna	ETT I	<u>X</u>				Antonio de la composición de l	
	A second se					and a second sec	END DATE FILMED 8 -78 DDC						-	ţ,
1										240				J.
								14						
	. 19													
		*							-	*			;	/



5/17 8 AD-EYYO OR AD A 0 5 6 0 0 TECHNICAL REPORT ARLCB-TR-78005 FOURTH ORDER ELASTIC CONSTANTS FOR SODIUM CHLORIDE TO 270 KBAR BY WAVE DYNAMICS LEVEL Moayyed A. Hussain Julius Frankel Raymond D. Scanlon March 1978

US ARMY ARI LARGE

COPY

US ARMY ARMAMENT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COMMAND LARGE CALIBER WEAPON SYSTEMS LABORATORY BENET WEAPONS LABORATORY WATERVLIET, N. Y. 12189

AMCMS No. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON No. GG-8-25496-GG



APPROVED FOR PUBLIC RELEASE; DISTRIBUTION UNLIMITED.

DISCLAIMER

San 2

The findings in this report are not to be construed as an official Department of the Army position unless so designated by other authorized documents.

The use of trade name(s) and/or manufacturer(s) does not constitute an official indorsement or approval.

DISPOSITION

Destroy this report when it is no longer needed. Do not return it to the originator.

ARLCB-TR-78005 ARLCB-TR-78005 FOURTH ORDER ELASTIC CONSTANTS FOR SODIUM CHLORID TO 270 KBAR BY WAVE DYNAMICS Moayyed A./Hussain, Julius/Frankel Raymond D./Scanlon PERFORMING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	S. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERE S. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERE S. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER S. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(*) CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(*) 10. PROGRAM ELEMENT. PROJECT. TASK AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS AMCMS NO. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH6 PRON NO. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
ARLCB-TR-78005 TITLE (and subtrite) FOURTH ORDER ELASTIC CONSTANTS FOR SODIUM CHLORID TO 270 KBAR BY WAVE DYNAMICS. Moayyed A./Hussain, Julius/Frankel Raymond D./Scanlon PERFORMING OFFICENTION NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL 1. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	5. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERE 6. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER 6. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(*) 10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS AMCMS NO. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON NO. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
EOURTH ORDER ELASTIC CONSTANTS FOR SODIUM CHLORID TO 270 KBAR BY WAVE DYNAMICS. Moayyed A./Hussain, Julius/Frankel Raymond D./Scanlon PERFORMING ONGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL I. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	5. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERE 91 6. PERFORMING ORS. REPORT NUMBER 8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(*) 10. PROGRAM ELEMENT. PROJECT. TASK AMCMS NO. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON NO. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
EOURTH ORDER ELASTIC CONSTANTS FOR SODIUM CHLORID TO 270 KBAR BY WAVE DYNAMICS Moayyed A. Hussain, Julius/Frankel Raymond D. /Scanlon PERCOMMING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	6. PERFORMING ORG. NEPORT NUMBER 6. PERFORMING ORG. NEPORT NUMBER 8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(*) 10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS AMCMS NO. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON NO. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
TO 270 KBAR BY WAVE DYNAMICS Moayyed A./Hussain, Julius/Frankel Raymond D./Scanlon PEBFORMING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL . CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	6. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER 8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(*) 10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS AMCMS NO. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON No. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
Moayyed A./Hussain, Julius/Frankel Raymond D./Scanlon PERFORMING ONCONTRATION NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	6. PERFORMING ONS. REPORT NUMBER 8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(*) 10. PROGRAM ELEMENT. PROJECT, TASH AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS AMCMS NO. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON No. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
Moayyed A./Hussain, Julius/Frankel Raymond D./Scanlon PERFORMING ONCANTRATION NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL 1. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(*) 10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS AMCMS No. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON No. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
Moayyed A./Hussain, Julius/Frankel Raymond D./Scanlon PERFORMING ONTENTION NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS AMCMS No. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON No. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
Julius/Frankel Raymond D./Scanlon PERCOMMING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	10 PROGRAM ELEMENT PROJECT, TASK AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS AMCMS No. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON No. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
Raymond D./Scanlon P. PERFORMING ONGANIZATION NAME AND ADDRESS Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 <u>DRDAR-LCB-TL</u> 11. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASH AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS AMCMS No. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON No. GG-8-25496-GG 12. REPORT DATE
Benet Weapons Laboratory Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL I. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	AMCMS No. 611102.11.AH60 DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON No. GG-8-25496-GG
Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, N.Y. 12189 DRDAR-LCB-TL U. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	DA Project No. 1L161102AH60 PRON No. GG-8-25496-GG
DRDAR-LCB-TL US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	PRON NO. GG-8-25496-GG
US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	12. REPORT DATE
US Army Armament Research and Development Command Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	
Large Caliber Weapon Systems Laboratory	March 1978
Name and Andrew Andre	13. NUMBER OF PAGES
DOVER, NEW JERSEY (1/80] 14. MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(If different from Controlling Office)	15. SECURITY CLASS. (at this report)
OLES COLOS FULLY HAD	
(18) SBIEL (1914)-E440 9081	UNCLASSIFIED
C Sancasana and a second	15a. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE
18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	
19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde II necessary and identify by block number Continuum Mechanics Equation of State Pressure Ultrasonic Velocities	r)
20. Instruct Continue on reverse life if necessary and identify by block number where the dilatational and shear velocit for an isotropic material under high hydrostatic continuum mechanics using the theory of small defi ite strain. The strain energy density of the mate in terms of the strain invariants.	ies and the equation of state pressures by the methods of ormation superposed on a fin- erial is taken to fourth orde

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

A CALLER C.

0.0 elts Zg. 600

INTRODUCTION	1
DERIVATION OF VELOCITIES FOR THE THEORY OF SMALL DEFORMATION SUPERPOSED ON FINITE UNIFORM DEFORMATION	2
The Deformed State (Under Finite Deformation)	5
The Perturbed State	6
THE UNIVERSAL IDENTITY	9
APPLICATION WITH FOURTH ORDER ELASTIC CONSTANTS	10
The Velocities	10
The Equation of State	12
Numerical Results and Discussion	13
COMPARISON WITH AVAILABLE ELASTIC CONSTANTS	19
CONCLUSIONS	22
REFERENCES	24
LIST OF TABLES	
1. ELASTIC CONSTANTS (x 10 ¹¹ DYNES/CM ²)	15
2. THIRD ORDER CONSTANTS FROM FOUR DIFFERENT EXPERIMENTS AS GIVEN BY BARSCH CONVERTED TO OUR FORMULATION	21
LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS	
1. Schematic of the experimental acoustic measuring apparatus.	3
2. Configuration of system undergoing deformation.	3
 v_p, v_s as a function of pressure taking into consideration second order, third order, and fourth order elastic constants and comparing with experimental results. 	16
i	•

4. P vs λ_1 is plotted and inclusion of the fourth order is found to be necessary to fit the equation of state.

Page

INTRODUCTION

Ultrasonic measurements at very high pressures give us the unique opportunity of obtaining the elastic properties of crystalline solids experiencing extremely large elastic deformations, which cannot be attained by other more conventional techniques. At best conventional stress-strain measurements in crystalline solids indicate elastic strains of the order of one percent; in sodium chloride the linear strain at a hydrostatic pressure of 270 kbar is nearly eleven percent.

Methods of continuum mechanics brought to bear on high pressure problems were inspired by Bridgeman's pioneering experimental work. Murnaghan² did the early theoretical work, inventing the finite strain method and using it to third order elastic constants for the equation of state. Birch³ was another early worker using a somewhat different though valid formalism. A treatment giving the fourth order elastic constants for single crystals using lattice dynamics was given by Ghate⁴. The present treatment derives both the equation of state and the velocity in terms of the fourth order elastic constants by methods of continuum mechanics.

The methods used here are based on the tensor formalism developed in Green and Zerna.¹

Green, A. E., W. Zerna, Theoretical Elasticity, Oxford at the
Clarendon Press, 1954.
² Murnaghan, F. D., <u>Finite Deformations of an Elastic Solid</u> , Dover Publications, Inc., New York.
Birch, F., "The Effect of Pressure Upon the Elastic Parameters of Isotropic Solids, According to Murnaghan's Theory of Finite Strain," Jour. Appl. Phys. 9, 279, 1938.
Ghate, P. B., "Fourth Order Elastic Coefficients," Jour. Appl. Phys. 35.2, 337, 1964.

The experimental techniques for obtaining high "quasi-hydrostatic" pressures⁵ and for making high pressure ultrasonic interferometry measurements⁶ were described in detail elsewhere and are shown schematically in Figure 1.

The direct experimental data obtained from ultrasonic interferometry consists of the frequency intervals Δf_p and Δf_s (for dilatational and shear modes respectively) for maximum destructive interference of the first echo of the ultrasonic echo train as observed on the cathode ray tube. Here the respective velocities are given by $(\Delta f)/(2d)$ where d is the specimen thickness. The isotropic velocities were obtained through the use of the Decker equation and the frequency intervals in the universal identity relating the adiabatic density derivative of the pressure and the dilatational and shear isotropic velocities V_p and V_s respectively at all hydrostatic pressures: $\partial_p/\partial \rho_{ad} = V_p^{-2} - (4/3)V_s^{-2}$.

DERIVATION OF VELOCITIES FOR THE THEORY OF SMALL DEFORMATION SUPERPOSED ON FINITE UNIFORM DEFORMATION

Using the notation of Green and Zerna¹ and conforming to the experimental situation we apply a uniform hydrostatic deformation to the unstrained body B_0 which becomes B in the new (pressurized) state. To the body B we apply an infinitessimal deformation (the ultrasonic wave) at time t, and represent this configuration as B' (Figure 2).

¹Green, A. E., W. Zerna, <u>Theoretical Elasticity</u>, Oxford at the Clarendon Press, 1954.

⁵Kendall, D. P., P. V. Dembowski, T. E. Davidson, Rev. Sci. Inst. Vol. 46, No. 5 (1975).

⁶Frankel, J., J. F. Rich, C. G. Homan, J. Geoph. Res. Vol. 81, No. 35, 6357-6363, 1976.



Figure 1. Schematic of the experimental acoustic measuring apparatus.



Figure 2. Configuration of system undergoing deformation.

Taking the moving coordinates to coincide with a fixed rectangular system (x,y,z) in the strained body B (Eulerian formulation) we have

 $\Theta_1 = x$ $\Theta_2 = y$ $\Theta_3 = z$ (strained body) (1) The rectangular axes which define points in B₀ are taken to coincide with the axes (x_1, x_2, x_3) .

The constant extension ratio λ_1 , (the strain parameter) is given by

$$\lambda_1 = \frac{x}{x_1} = \frac{y}{y_1} = \frac{z}{z_1}$$
(2)

By taking the body (working) coordinates in the deformed body (i.e. the working coordinates move with the mass points of the body) and using the definition of the metric g_{ij} from the equation $ds^2 = g_{ij} d\Theta^i d\Theta^j$ we have the metric tensor of the undeformed body

$$g_{ij} = \begin{bmatrix} 1/\lambda_1^2 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 1/\lambda_1^2 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 1/\lambda_1^2 \end{bmatrix}; g^{ij} = \begin{bmatrix} \lambda_1^2 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & \lambda_1^2 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & \lambda_1^2 \end{bmatrix}$$
(3)
and $g = 1/\lambda_1^6$

Here the sub or superscripts refer to the covariant or contravariant tensor representations. g is the determinant of g_{ij} . In the same representation the metric tensor G_{ij} of the deformed body B is

$$G_{ij} = G^{1j} = \delta_{ij} ; G = 1$$
 (4)

where δ is the Kronecker delta.

The Deformed State (Under Finite Deformation)

The strain invariants are

$$I_1 = 3\lambda_1^2 \qquad I_2 = 3\lambda_1^4 \qquad I_3 = \lambda_1^6$$
 (5)

and the strain tensor elements become

$$\gamma_{ij} = \frac{1}{2} (G_{ij} - g_{ij}) = \frac{1}{2} \delta_{ij} (1 - \frac{1}{\lambda_1^2})$$
(6)

The strain invariants (Eq. 5) are independent of the coordinates, they are constant for a given deformation. At this point we invoke Murnaghan's theorem (p. 61 of reference 2) for isotropic elastic media: "A deformable medium is isotropic if, and only if, the strain energy density is a function of the three strain invariants I_1 , I_2 , I_3 ".

We can now express the strain energy density W in terms of I_1 , I_2 , I_3 and after some manipulation (as given in reference 2) and using the principle of virtual work we can obtain the components of the stress tensor of the body under finite deformation.

$$\tau^{11} = \Phi \lambda_1^2 + 2\Psi \lambda_1^4 + p$$

$$\tau^{22} = \tau^{33} = \tau^{11}$$

$$\tau^{12} = \tau^{13} = \tau^{23} = 0$$
(7)

where $\Phi = \frac{2}{\sqrt{I_3}} \frac{\partial W}{\partial I_1}$ $\Psi = \frac{2}{\sqrt{I_3}} \frac{\partial W}{\partial I_2}$ $p = 2\sqrt{I_3} \frac{\partial W}{\partial I_3}$ (8)

It should be noted here that since $G_{ij} = \delta_{ij}$ the unit reference area is taken in the deformed coordinates. Equations (7) therefore represent the physical components of the stresses and in particular τ^{11} is the hydrostatic pressure in our experiment (τ^{11} = -P).

²Murnaghan, F. D., <u>Finite Deformations of an Elastic Solid</u>, Dover Publications Inc., New York.

The Perturbed State

We are now in a position to derive similar quantities for the perturbed case B', the displacements due to the ultrasonic wave. In this new configuration the displacements can be written as the sum of the initial uniform displacement of the body \vec{v} and that of the perturbation $\vec{\epsilon_{W}}, \vec{v}(\Theta_1, \Theta_2, \Theta_3, t) + \vec{\epsilon_{W}}(\Theta_1, \Theta_2, \Theta_3, t)$ where ϵ is a constant so small that the squares of ϵ and its higher powers may be neglected compared to ϵ .

The covariant base vectors of the coordinate system Θ_i at points P' of B' are denoted by $G_i + \varepsilon G_i = r$, i + v, $i + \varepsilon w$, where r is the location of point P_0 , and the commas indicate differentiation with respect to the ith coordinate.

To the first order in ε the perturbed metric tensor G'_{ij} (the perturbed state is usually denoted by primed quantities) of the deformed body referred to base vectors of body B is:

$$G'_{ij} = \begin{bmatrix} 2 \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} & \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial x} & \frac{\partial u}{\partial z} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial x} \\ (symm) & 2 \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} & \frac{\partial v}{\partial z} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial y} \\ & & 2 \frac{\partial w}{\partial z} \end{bmatrix} = -G^{ij'} \quad (9)$$

$$w = \omega_{m} \vec{G}_{m} = \omega^{m} \vec{G}_{m}$$
and $\omega_{1} = u \quad \omega_{2} = V \quad \omega_{3} = W$

The perturbation in the strain invariants is

$$I'_{1} = 2\lambda_{1}^{2} \left(\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial z} \right)$$

$$I'_{2} = 4\lambda_{1}^{4} \left(\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial z} \right)$$

$$I'_{3} = 2\lambda_{1}^{6} \left(\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial z} \right)$$
(10)

The perturbation components of the stress tensor are given by (see ref. [1] p. 119).

$$\tau'^{11} = C_{11} \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + C_{12} \left(\frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial z} \right)$$

$$\tau'^{22} = C_{11} \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + C_{12} \left(\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial z} \right)$$

$$\tau'^{33} = C_{11} \frac{\partial w}{\partial z} + C_{12} \left(\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} \right)$$
(11)

$$\tau'^{12} = C_{44} \left(\frac{\partial u}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial x} \right)$$

$$\tau'^{23} = C_{44} \left(\frac{\partial v}{\partial z} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial y} \right)$$

$$\tau'^{31} = C_{44} \left(\frac{\partial w}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial u}{\partial z} \right)$$
(12)

Where

$$C_{11} = -\tau^{11} + 2A\lambda_{1}^{4} + 8B\lambda_{1}^{8} + 2C\lambda_{1}^{12} + 8D\lambda_{1}^{10} + 4E\lambda_{1}^{8} + 8F\lambda_{1}^{6}$$

$$C_{12} = -\lambda_{1}^{2}\phi + p + 2A\lambda_{1}^{4} + 8B\lambda_{1}^{8} + 2C\lambda_{1}^{12} + 8D\lambda_{1}^{10} + 4E\lambda_{1}^{6} + 8F\lambda_{1}^{6}$$

$$C_{44} = \frac{1}{2}(C_{11} - C_{12})$$
(13)

And

$$A = \frac{2}{\sqrt{I_3}} \frac{\partial^2 W}{\partial I_1^2} , \qquad B = \frac{2}{\sqrt{I_3}} \frac{\partial^2 W}{\partial I_2^2} , \qquad C = \frac{2}{\sqrt{I_3}} \frac{\partial^2 W}{\partial I_3^2}$$

$$D = \frac{2}{\sqrt{I_3}} \frac{\partial^2 W}{\partial I_2 \partial I_3} , \qquad E = \frac{2}{\sqrt{I_3}} \frac{\partial^2 W}{\partial I_3 \partial I_1} , \qquad F = \frac{2}{\sqrt{I_3}} \frac{\partial^2 W}{\partial I_1 \partial I_2}$$
(14)

¹Green, A. E., W. Zerna, <u>Theoretical Elasticity</u>, Oxford at the Clarendon Press, 1954.

The physical components of perturbation in stresses, t'^{rs} , can be obtained by the contravariant transformation rule, and to the first order in ε and referring to the B' configuration we have

$$t'rs = \tau'rs + \tau^{ms} \frac{\partial \omega_{r}}{\partial \Theta^{m}} + \tau^{rm} \frac{\partial \omega_{s}}{\partial \Theta^{m}}$$
(15)

Using (12) we have

$$t^{11} = (C_{11} + 2\tau^{11}) \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + C_{12}(\frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial z})$$

$$t^{22} = (C_{11} + 2\tau^{11}) \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + C_{12}(\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial z})$$

$$t^{33} = (C_{11} + 2\tau^{11}) \frac{\partial w}{\partial z} + C_{12}(\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y})$$

$$t^{12} = (C_{44} + \tau^{11})(\frac{\partial u}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial x})$$

$$t^{23} = (C_{44} + \tau^{11})(\frac{\partial v}{\partial z} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial y})$$

$$t^{31} = (C_{44} + \tau^{11})(\frac{\partial w}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial u}{\partial z})$$

The equation of motion, with f'^r as acceleration components, become

$$\frac{\partial t'^{rs}}{\partial \Theta^{s}} = \rho f'^{r}$$
(17)

From (17) and (16) we have (after some manipulation)

$$\frac{1}{2} (C_{11} - C_{12} + 2\tau^{11}) \nabla^2 u + \frac{1}{2} (C_{11} + C_{12} + 2\tau^{11}) (\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x^2} + \frac{\partial^2 v}{\partial x \partial y} + \frac{\partial^2 w}{\partial x \partial z}) = \rho \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial t^2}$$

$$\frac{1}{2} (C_{11} - C_{12} + 2\tau^{11}) \nabla^2 v + \frac{1}{2} (C_{11} + C_{12} + 2\tau^{11}) (\frac{\partial^2 v}{\partial y^2} + \frac{\partial^2 w}{\partial y \partial z} + \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x \partial y}) = \rho \frac{\partial^2 v}{\partial t^2}$$

$$\frac{1}{2} (C_{11} - C_{12} + 2\tau^{11}) \nabla^2 w + \frac{1}{2} (C_{11} + C_{12} + 2\tau^{11}) (\frac{\partial^2 w}{\partial z^2} + \frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial x \partial z} + \frac{\partial^2 v}{\partial y \partial z}) = \rho \frac{\partial^2 w}{\partial t^2}$$
(18)

Vectorially adding above with $\vec{w} = \vec{1}u + \vec{j}v + \vec{k}w$ we have

$$\frac{1}{2} (C_{11} - C_{12} + 2\tau^{11}) \nabla^2 \bar{w} + \frac{1}{2} (C_{11} + C_{12} + 2\tau^{11}) \nabla (\nabla \bar{w}) = \rho \bar{w}$$
(19)

This is the equation of motion of body B' in terms of perturbation (\bar{w}) of displacement of body B.

Taking the divergence and curl of (19) we have

$$\nabla^{2} (\nabla \cdot \bar{w}) = \left(\frac{\rho}{C_{11} + 2\tau^{11}}\right) \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial t^{2}} (\nabla \cdot \bar{w})$$

$$\nabla^{2} (\nabla \times \bar{w}) = \left(\frac{2\rho}{C_{11} - C_{12} + 2\tau^{11}}\right) \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial t^{2}} (\nabla \times \bar{w})$$
(20)

THE UNIVERSAL IDENTITY

From (16) we have

$$t^{11} + t^{22} + t^{33} = (C_{11} + 2C_{12} + 2\tau^{11})(\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial z})$$
 (21)

let
$$t'^{11} = t'^{22} = t'^{33} = -\Delta$$
 (Pressure) = $-\Delta P$ (22)

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial z} = \frac{-\Delta (Volume)}{Unperturbed} = -\Delta\xi$$

Volume

hence $\frac{\Delta \rho}{\rho} = -\Delta \xi$ (23) (23) and (22) with (21) give

$$\rho \frac{dP}{d\rho} = \underset{\Delta\xi \neq 0}{\text{Limit}} \qquad \rho \frac{\Delta P}{\Delta \rho} = \frac{1}{3} (C_{11} + 2C_{12} + 2\tau^{11})$$
(24)

Hence from (24) and (20) eliminating C_{11} , C_{12} , τ^{11} we have

$$V_{\rm p}^{\ 2} = \frac{4}{3} V_{\rm s}^{\ 2} + \frac{dP}{d\rho}$$
 (25)

(25) is the universal identity 7 .

⁷Truesdell, C., Handbuch der Physik, Ed.S. Flugge, Vol III/3, Springer Verlag, Heidelberg, New York. From (20) we have the velocities

$$V_{p} = \left(\frac{C_{11}+2\tau^{11}}{\rho}\right) \qquad \text{Dilatational Velocity}$$

$$V_{s} = \left(\frac{C_{11}-C_{12}+2\tau^{11}}{2\rho}\right) \qquad \text{Shear Velocity} \qquad (26)$$

Where C_{11} , τ^{11} etc. can be computed in terms of derivatives of W with respect to strain invariants from (13), (14) and (8).

APPLICATION WITH FOURTH ORDER ELASTIC CONSTANTS

The Velocities

In this section we assume that the elastic strain energy for the material under consideration can be expanded up to fourth order terms in strain invariants. The strain invariants defined by Murnaghan² are slightly different than those of Green and Zerna¹. For the sake of easy comparison we give the transformation, denoting those of Murnaghan by a superscript c,

$$I_{1}^{c} = \frac{1}{2} (I_{1}^{-3})$$

$$I_{2}^{c} = \frac{1}{4} [(I_{2}^{-3}) - 2(I_{1}^{-3})]$$

$$I_{3}^{c} = \frac{1}{8} [(I_{3}^{-1}) + (I_{1}^{-3}) - (I_{2}^{-3})]$$

$$W = \frac{1}{2} (\lambda + 2\mu) I_{1}^{c^{2}} - 2\mu I_{2}^{c} + \frac{(\ell + 2m)}{3} I_{1}^{c^{3}} - 2m I_{1}^{c} I_{2}^{c} + n I_{3}^{c}$$

$$+ 16q (I_{1}^{c})^{4} + 16r (I_{1}^{c^{2}}) (I_{2}^{c}) + 16s (I_{1}^{c} I_{3}^{c}) + 16t (I_{2}^{c^{2}})$$
(28)

¹Green, A. E., W. Zerna, <u>Theoretical Elasticity</u>, Oxford at the Clarendon Press, 1954.

²Murnaghan, F. D., <u>Finite Deformations of an Elastic Solid</u>, Dover Publications Inc., New York. Where λ,μ

Lame's second order elastic constants

l,m,n (Murnaghan's) third order elastic constants
q,r,s,t Fourth order elastic constants
(Factor 16 is for convenience only)

Substituting equation (27) into (28) we have

$$W = \lambda \frac{1}{8} (I_1 - 3)^2$$

$$+ \mu \frac{1}{4} [(I_1 - 3)^2 - 2(I_2 - 3) + 4(I_1 - 3)]$$

$$+ \ell \frac{1}{24} (I_1 - 3)^3 + m \frac{1}{12} [(I_1 - 3)^3 - 3(I_1 - 3)(I_2 - 3) + 6(I_1 - 3)^2]$$

$$+ n \frac{1}{8} [(I_3 - 1) + (I_1 - 3) - (I_2 - 3)]$$

$$+ q(I_1 - 3)^4 + r[(I_1 - 3)^2(I_2 - 3) - 2(I_1 - 3)^3]$$

$$+ s[(I_1 - 3)(I_3 - 1) + (I_1 - 3)^2 - (I_1 - 3)(I_2 - 3)]$$

$$+ t[(I_2 - 3)^2 - 4(I_2 - 3)(I_1 - 3) + 4(I_1 - 3)^2]$$
(29)

Using (26), (13) and (5) and some manipulation we have

$$\rho V_{p}^{2} = \lambda \left(\frac{5\lambda_{1}}{2} - \frac{3}{2\lambda_{1}^{2}}\right) + \mu \left(3\lambda_{1} - \frac{1}{\lambda_{1}}\right) + 3\ell \left(\frac{7\lambda_{1}^{3}}{4} - \frac{5\lambda_{1}}{2} + \frac{3}{4\lambda_{1}}\right) + 2m \lambda_{1} \left(\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1\right) + \frac{n}{4\lambda_{1}} \left(\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1\right)^{2} + 216q \left(\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1\right)^{2} \left(3\lambda_{1} - \frac{1}{\lambda}\right)$$
(30)

+
$$24r(\lambda_1^2-1)^2(8\lambda_1-\frac{3}{\lambda_1})$$
 + $8s(\lambda_1^2-1)^2(2\lambda_1-\frac{1}{\lambda_1})$ + $8t(\lambda_1^2-1)^2(7\lambda_1-\frac{3}{\lambda_1})$

and

$$\rho V_{s}^{2} = \frac{3\lambda}{2} (\lambda_{1} - \frac{1}{\lambda_{1}}) + \mu (2\lambda_{1} - \frac{1}{\lambda_{1}}) + \frac{9\ell}{4\lambda_{1}} (\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1)^{2} + \frac{3m\lambda_{1}}{2} (\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1)$$

$$\frac{n}{4\lambda_{1}} (\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1) + 216q \frac{1}{\lambda_{1}} (\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1)^{3} + 18r (\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1)^{2} (3\lambda_{1} - \frac{4}{\lambda_{1}})$$

$$+ 2s (\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1)^{2} (\lambda_{1} - \frac{4}{\lambda_{1}}) + 12t (\lambda_{1}^{2} - 1) (\lambda_{1} - \frac{2}{\lambda_{1}})$$
(31)

In the above expression there are two second order, three third order and four fourth order elastic constants. However, only two unique combinations of each third and fourth order elastic constants appear in (30) and (31); these combinations can be easily found by collecting equal powers of the strain parameter λ_1 . These are

$$\alpha = (9l+n)$$

Third Order
 $\beta = (3l+2m)$

(32)

$$\gamma = (27q + 9r + s + 3t)$$

Fourth Order
 $\delta = (81q + 24r + 2s + 7t)$

Using (32) the expressions in (30) and (31) become

$$V_{p}^{2}\rho = \lambda_{1}^{5}(8\delta) + \lambda_{1}^{3}(\frac{1}{4}\alpha + \beta - 8\gamma - 16\delta) + \lambda_{1}(\frac{5\lambda}{2} + 3\mu - \frac{\alpha}{2} - \beta + 16\gamma + 8\delta) + \frac{1}{\lambda_{1}}(-\frac{3\lambda}{2} - \mu + \frac{1}{4}\alpha - 8\gamma)$$
(33)

$$V_{s}^{2}\rho = \lambda_{1}^{5}(6\delta - 10\gamma) + \lambda_{1}^{3}(\frac{3}{4}\beta - 12\delta + 12\gamma) + \lambda_{1}(\frac{3\lambda}{2} + 2\mu - \frac{\alpha}{4} - \frac{3}{4}\beta + 6\gamma + 6\delta) + \frac{1}{\lambda_{1}}(-\frac{3\lambda}{2} - \mu + \frac{1}{4}\alpha - 8\gamma)$$
(34)

The Equation of State

Using (7) and noting that τ^{11} = -Pressure we have the equation

$$-P = \frac{1}{2} (3\lambda + 2\mu) \frac{1}{\lambda_1} (\lambda_1^2 - 1) + \alpha \frac{1}{4\lambda_1} (\lambda_1^2 - 1)^2 + \frac{8\gamma}{\lambda_1} (\lambda_1^2 - 1)^3$$
(35)

The first two terms on right side of (35) represent Murnaghan's equation, the additional term is due to fourth order elastic constants, and plays an important role at high strains. It should be noted that in Equation (35) only one combination of each order of elastic constants appears. This is the consequence of the universal identity which has to be satisfied, independently of the assumed elastic potential. This phenomenon has far reaching consequences, as will be explained in the sequel, in obtaining the equation of state, purely from the velocity ratio.

Numerical Results and Discussion

As explained in reference 6, Δf_p and Δf_s are obtained experimentally and are related to V_p and V_s by $\Delta f_p = V_p/2d \Delta f_s = V_s/2d$ where d is the specimen thickness. A spline function fit was made to these Δf_p and Δf_s and using the universal identity (25) (which is independent of the elastic constants used) and Decker's equation of state⁸, d was determined from

$$d = \left[-\frac{\lambda_{1}^{4}}{12\rho_{0}} \frac{dp/d\lambda_{1}(1+\Delta)}{(\Delta f_{p}^{2} - 4/3\Delta f_{s}^{2})} \right]^{2}, (1+\Delta = 1.054)$$
(36)

and V_p, V_s computed for all pressures.

The Frankel, Rich, and Homan⁶ (FRH) and Voronov and Grigorev⁹ (VG) velocity data were both analyzed. Since the FRH data starts at 25 kbar (the 25 kbar point having been determined by matching velocity ratios of FRH to VG at 25 kbar) only the VG velocity and $\partial v/\partial p$ were used near zero pressure to give the second order elastic constants λ and μ , and the third order elastic constants α and β . Having obtained the second

⁶Frankel, J., J. F. Rich, C. G. Homan, J. Geoph. Res. Vol. 81, No. 35, 6357-6363, 1976.

⁸Decker, D. L., W. A. Barrett, L. Merrill, H. T. Hall, and J. D. Barnet, "High Pressure Calibration: A Critical Review," J. Phys. Chem., Ref. Date 1, 773-835, 1972.

⁹Voronov, F. F., and Grigorev, S. B., "Influence of Pressures up to 100 Kbar on Elastic Properties of Silver Sodium and Cesium Chloride," Sov. Phys. Solid State, Vol. 18, No. 2, 325-328, 1976.

and third order elastic constants from VG alone the fourth order elastic constants were obtained in two ways, by analyzing the FRH data and the VG velocity data. In addition to that, one of the fourth order elastic constants γ , was obtained by fitting the results of the Decker equation to our formulation of the equation of state (Eq. 35). For the ultrasonic data the fourth order elastic constants γ and δ were computed by minimizing the integral of the sum of the squares of the differences between the experimental values of v_p and v_s and the theoretical expressions over the parameters γ and δ . The results are given in Table 1.

In Figure 3 we plot v_p and v_s as a function of pressure for inclusion of second, third and fourth order elastic constants. The experimental results are also plotted.

An interesting observation from Figure 3 is the peak in the shear velocity as predicted by VG data using fourth order elastic constants. These elastic constants predict a shear velocity which peaks at about 80 kbar. A peak would be interesting from lattice dynamics considerations using the Born criterion of phase changes.⁶ The FRH experimental data does not show such a peak.

In terms of our formulation the results from the VG data agree very well with the Decker equation (see γ in Table 1 and Figure 4). The fourth order elastic constants from VG evaluated up to 80 kbar $\overline{^{6}$ Frankel, J., J. F. Rich, C. G. Homan, J. Geoph. Res. Vol. 81, No. 35, 6357-6363, 1976.

TABLE 1. Elastic constants obtained in our formulation. The second and third order constants were obtained from low pressure velocity data of Voronov and Grigorev⁹. The fourth order elastic constants are obtained from present analysis based on velocities reported in ref. 6. The fourth order constant under source D was obtained from the Decker equation using VG values for second and third order elastic constants.

ELASTIC CONSTANTS (x 10¹¹ DYNES/CM²)

Source	Second	Order	Third C	rder	Fourth Order		
	λ	μ	α	β	Y	δ	
VG	1.5430	1.4699	-54.8724	-30.845	4.4701	18.3613	
FRH	"	"	"	"	6.5206	28.1030	
D	"	"	"	_	4.8716	-	

6Frankel, J., J. F. Rich, C. G. Homan, J. Geoph. Res. Vol. 81, No. 35, 6357-6363, 1976.

9Voronov, F. F., and Grigorev, S. B., "Influence of Pressures up to 100 Kbar on Elastic Properties of Silver Sodium and Cesium Chloride," Sov. Phys. Solid State, Vol. 18, No. 2, 325-328, 1976.



Figure 3. v_p, v_s as a function of pressure taking into consideration second order, third order, and fourth order elastic constants and comparing with experimental results.



Equation of State Comparison

Pressure (kbar)

Figure 4. P vs λ_1 is plotted and inclusion of the fourth order term is found to be necessary to fit the equation of state.

predict the equation of state to 270 kbar. The equation of state obtained from the FRH velocities is also included in Figure 4 as an internal check since the Decker equation was used to obtain the velocities. The results from the FRH data differ from the Decker equation curve by about 5 percent of the change in the linear dimension to 270 kbar, or on the pressure scale by \approx 10 out of 270 kbar (4%). Figures 3 and 4 point up an anomaly: even though the fourth order elastic constants fit the FRH deduced velocities better to 270 kbar, the fourth order elastic constants obtained from VG to 80 kbar predict the equation of state better.

Further work on fifth order elastic constants and use of velocity ratios is indicated. Figures 3 and 4 strongly indicate that third order elastic constants are not sufficient in predicting velocities or the equation of state beyond 80 kbar. The fact that the present development not only derives the equation of state to fourth order elastic constants but enables us to determine them from velocity information will find application in very high pressure or high compression equation of state studies.

In deriving the FRH results of Figures 3 and 4 we have used the Decker equation. However, an independent equation of state can also be obtained if we have good velocity data in the neighborhood of zero pressure.

The computation is done as follows: a spline function fit is obtained to the available data near zero pressure (using interpolating splines) and the derivatives obtained at P = 0 (i.e. λ_1 = 1). From (33) and (34) we then obtain $\lambda, \mu, \alpha, \beta$, the second and third order elastic constants. With these we minimize the integral of the difference of the squares of the experimentally obtained $\Delta f_p / \Delta f_s$, with respect to γ and δ (fourth order elastic constants), and the ratio of equations (33) and (34) over the required range of pressure (least square fit). Once γ and δ are thus determined the equation of state is then easily obtained from equation (35). This method has an additional advantage, that it is not necessary to measure the deformed dimensions of the specimen.

COMPARISON WITH AVAILABLE ELASTIC CONSTANTS

The fourth order elastic constants are not yet available in the open literature. However, Barsch¹⁰ has done an extensive review and analysis for third order isotropic elastic constants. Comparing our equation (29) to Barsch's equation 5 we get in his notation

 $n = 7/2 C_{456}$ $m = C_{144} - 7/4 C_{456}$ $\ell = \frac{1}{4} (C_{123} + 2m-n)$ (37)

10Barsch, G. R. "Relations Between Third Order Elastic Constants of Single Crystals and Polycrystals," Jour. Appl. Phys., Vol. 39, 8, 3780, 1968. We evaluated data given by Barsch¹⁰ from four different sodium chloride experiments by substituting (37) for the third order elastic constants in (32). The results are given in Table 2. Since the NaCl 2 data falls strongly out of the pattern of the other three, we compared the α and β as given in Table 1 with the average of NaCl 1, 3 and 4. The results are in excellent agreement.

Table 1 also shows the satisfactory agreement between the values of γ and δ obtained from different experiments, and the Decker Equation, as discussed above.

No mention has been made so far as to the nature of the elastic constants obtained. We note two factors (a) the specimen in our experiment was compressed isothermally; (b) velocity measurements at the frequencies of our experiment (~ 10MHZ) are adiabatic.

Hence in high pressure experiments we make adiabatic measurements on a state arrived at by isothermal deformation. (The hydrostatic pressurization is assumed thermodynamically reversible, which is not totally true for quasi-hydrostatic systems.) The elastic constants thus arrived at are known as mixed elastic constants in the literature. No corrections have been made from mixed to isothermal elastic constants because the difference for NaCl can be considered small enough to fall within the uncertainty of the determination.¹¹

¹⁰Barsch, G. R. "Relations Between Third Order Elastic Constants of Single Crystals and Polycrystals," Jour. Appl. Phys., Vol. 39, 8, 3780, 1968.

¹¹Barsch, G. R. and Z. P. Chang, "Adiabatic Isothermal and Intermediate Pressure Derivatives of the Elastic Constants from Cubic Symmetry," Phys. Stat. Sol. 19, 139 (1967), and private communication (Chang).

TABLE 2. THIRD ORDER CONSTANTS FROM FOUR DIFFERENT EXPERIMENTS AS GIVEN BY BARSCH¹⁰ CONVERTED TO OUR FORMULATION

Comparison of Third Order Elastic Constants of NaCl (x 10^{11} dynes/cm²)

					Average of 1,3,4	*Difference wrt Table 1
α	-56.86	-33.53	-55.76	-51.18	-54.27	1.1
β	-32.33	-24.16	-32.22	-29.96	-30.76	0.27

¹⁰Barsch, G. R., "Relations Between Third Order Elastic Constants of Single Crystals and Polycrystals," Jour. Appl. Phys., Vol. 39, 8, 3780, 1968.

CONCLUSIONS

1. Using fundamental principles we have derived the equation of state and velocities in terms of second, third, and fourth order elastic constants, for an isotropic solid.

2. The results imply that a) with sufficiently accurate velocity data near zero pressure and the velocity ratio measured to high pressures an equation of state can be determined outside of regions where phase changes take place, b) with sufficiently good velocity data near zero pressure or at low pressures a pressure scale can be predicted from experimentally obtained velocity ratio information.

3. The mechanism of computation can easily be extended to fifth order elastic constants.

4. In general wave methods are much more sensitive for the measurement of elastic properties of matter than static measurements because of relative sensitivity of velocity measurements to volume measurements at these pressures.

5. As a last point it is useful to stress the complete generality and the high pressure predictive powers of the method derived here together with the velocity ratio concept.

The equations are derived from first principles and apply to any isotropic solid in a pressure-volume range where no phase changes take place. These can be carried to fourth and fifth order elastic constants and the constants can be obtained to any pressure to which the velocity ratio can be measured. The equation of state derived from these principles with the fourth and fifth order elastic constants is

expected to have predictive powers to higher than the measured pressures better than any method heretofore developed.

This will be useful in obtaining the very high pressure molecular equation of state for materials such as rare gas solids. These molecular results will then be compared with available equations for the metallic state and the pressure of the molecular-metallic transition will then be predicted, together with its estimated uncertainty.

REFERENCES

- Green, A. E., W. Zerna, <u>Theoretical Elasticity</u>, Oxford at the Clarendon Press, 1954.
- Murnaghan, F. D., <u>Finite Deformations of an Elastic Solid</u>, Dover Publications Inc., New York.
- Birch, F., "The Effect of Pressure Upon the Elastic Parameters of Isotropic Solids, According to Murnaghan's Theory of Finite Strain," Jour. Appl. Phys. 9, 279, 1938.
- Ghate, P. B., "Fourth Order Elastic Coefficients," Jour. Appl. Phys. 35.2, 337, 1964.
- Kendall, D. P., P. V. Dembowski, T. E. Davidson, Rev. Sci. Inst. Vol. 46, No. 5, (1975).
- Frankel, J., J. F. Rich, C. G. Homan, J. Geoph. Res. Vol. 81, No. 35, 6357-6363, 1976.
- Truesdell, C., Handbuch der Physik, Ed. S. Flugge, Vol III/3, Springer Verlag, Heidelberg, New York.
- Decker, D. L., W. A. Barrett, L. Merrill, H. T. Hall, and J. D. Barnet, "High Pressure Calibration: A Critical Review," J. Phys. Chem., Ref. Date 1, 773-835, 1972.
- Voronov, F. F., and Grigorev, S. B., "Influence of Pressures up to 100 Kbar on Elastic Properties of Silver Sodium and Cesium Chloride," Sov. Phys. Solid State, Vol. 18, No. 2, 325-328, 1976.

- Barsch, G. R., "Relations Between Third Order Elastic Constants of Single Crystals and Polycrystals," Jour. Appl. Phys., Vol. 39, 8, 3780, 1968.
- 11. Barsch, G. R. and Z. P. Chang, "Adiabatic Isothermal and Intermediate Pressure Derivatives of the Elastic Constants from Cubic Symmetry," Phys. Stat. Sol. 19, 139 (1967), and private communication.

WATERVLIET ARSENAL INTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST

	NO. OF COPIES
COMMANDER	1
DIRECTOR, BENET WEAPONS LABORATORY	1
CHIEF, DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING BRANCH ATTN: DRDAR-LCB-DA -DM -DP -DR -DR -DS	1 1 1 1 1
-DC CHIEF, ENGINEERING SUPPORT BRANCH	1
CHIEF, RESEARCH BRANCH ATTN: DRDAR-LCB-RA -RC -RM -RP	2 1 1 1 1
TECHNICAL LIBRARY	5
TECHNICAL PUBLICATIONS & EDITING UNIT	2
DIRECTOR, OPERATIONS DIRECTORATE	1
DIRECTOR, PROCUREMENT DIRECTORATE	1
DIRECTOR, PRODUCT ASSURANCE DIRECTORATE	1

NOTE: PLEASE NOTIFY DIRECTOR, BENET WEAPONS LABORATORY, ATTN: DRDAR-LCB-TL, OF ANY FEQUIRED CHANGES.

EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST

N <u>C</u>	OPIES		NO. OF COPIES
ASST SEC OF THE ARMY RESEARCH ६ DEVELOPMENT ATTN: DEP FOR SCI ६ TECH THE PENTAGON WASHINGTON, D.C. 20315	1	COMMANDER US ARMY TANK-AUTMV R&D COMD ATTN: TECH LIB - DRDTA-UL MAT LAB - DRDTA-RK WARREN, MICHIGAN 48090	1 1
COMMANDER US ARMY MAT DEV & READ. COMD ATTN: DRCDE 5001 EISENHOWER AVE ALEXANDRIA, VA 22333	1	COMMANDER US MILITARY ACADEMY ATTN: CHMN, MECH ENGR DEPT WEST POINT, NY 10996	1
COMMANDER US ARMY ARRADCOM ATTN: DRDAR-TSS DRDAR-LCA (PLASTICS TECH	2	REDSTONE ARSENAL ATTN: DRSMI-RB DRSMI-RRS DRSMI-RSM	2 1 1
EVAL CEN) DOVER, NJ 07801 COMMANDER US ARMY ARRCOM ATTN: DRSAR-LEP-L ROCK ISLAND ARSENAL	1	ALABAMA 35809 COMMANDER ROCK ISLAND ARSENAL ATTN: SARRI-ENM (MAT SCI DIV) ROCK ISLAND, IL 61202	1
ROCK ISLAND, IL 61299 DIRECTOR BALLISTICS RESEARCH LAB ATTN: DRDAR-TSB-S ABERDEEN PROVING GROUND MD 21005	1	COMMANDER HQ, US ARMY AVN SCH ATTN: OFC OF THE LIBRARIAN FT RUCKER, ALABAMA 36362	1
COMMANDER US ARMY ELECTRONICS COMD ATTN: TECH LIB FT MONMOUTH, NJ 07703	1	US ARMY FGN SCIENCE & TECH CEN ATTN: DRXST-SD 220 7TH STREET, N.E. CHARLOTTESVILLE, VA 22901	1
COMMANDER US ARMY MOBILITY EQUIP R&D COMD ATTN: TECH LIB FT BELVOIR, VA 22060	1	COMMANDER US ARMY MATERIALS & MECHANICS RESEARCH CENTER ATTN:, TECH LIB - DRXMR-PL WATERTOWN, MASS 02172	2

NOTE: PLEASE NOTIFY COMMANDER, ARRADCOM, ATTN: BENET WEAPONS LABORATORY, DRDAR-LCB-TL, WATERVLIET ARSENAL, WATERVLIET, N.Y. 12189, OF ANY REQUIRED CHANGES.

EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST (CONT)

	NO. OF COPIES		NO. OF COPIES
COMMANDER US ARMY RESEARCH OFFICE P.O. BOX 12211 RESEARCH TRIANGLE PARK, NC 27709	, 1	COMMANDER DEFENSE DOCU CEN ATTN: DDC-TCA CAMERON STATION ALEXANDRIA, VA 22314	12
COMMANDER US ARMY HARRY DIAMOND LAB ATTN: TECH LIB 2800 POWDER MILL ROAD ADELPHIA, MD 20783	1	METALS & CERAMICS INFO CEN BATTELLE COLUMBUS LAB 505 KING AVE COLUMBUS, OHIO 43201	1
DIRECTOR US ARMY INDUSTRIAL BASE ENG ACT ATTN: DRXPE-MT ROCK ISLAND, IL 61201	1	MPDC 13919 W. BAY SHORE DR. TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684	1
CHIEF, MATERIALS BRANCH US ARMY R&S GROUP, EUR BOX 65, FPO N.Y. 09510	1		
COMMANDER NAVAL SURFACE WEAPONS CEN ATTN: CHIEF, MAT SCIENCE DIV DAHLGREN, VA 22448	1		
DIRECTOR US NAVAL RESEARCH LAB ATTN: DIR, MECH DIV CODE 26-27 (DOC LIB) WASHINGTON, D.C. 20375	1 1		
COMMANDER WRIGHT-PATTERSON AFB ATTN: AFML/MXA OHIO 45433	2		
NASA SCIENTIFIC & TECH INFO FAC P.O. BOX 8757, ATTN: ACQ BR BALTIMORE/WASHINGTON INTL AIRPORT MARYLAND 21240	1		

NOTE: PLEASE NOTIFY COMMANDER, ARRADCOM, ATTN: BENET WEAPONS LABORATORY, DRDAR-LCB-TL, WATERVLIET ARSENAL, WATERVLIET, N.Y. 12189, OF ANY REQUIRED CHANGES.